
 
                     POL K  CO U N T Y,  WI S CO N S I N 

W W W . C O . P O L K . W I . U S  
 

                                       Notice of Meeting and Agenda 
Polk County Board of Supervisors 

100 Polk County Plaza, Balsam Lake, Wisconsin 
Polk County Government Center - County Board Room 

Tuesday, April 17, 2018 
Regular Business Meeting, 9:00 a.m.  

Open Session 
 

Order of Business: 
1. Call to Order 
2. Receipt of Evidence and Opinion on Proper Notice 
3. Roll Call 
4. Pledge of Allegiance 
5. Time of Reflection 
6. Oath of Office administered by Honorable Daniel J. Tolan 
7. Approval of Agenda  
8. Matters Offered For Adoption on Consent Agenda: 

a. Consideration/corrections to the published minutes from March 20, 2018 County 
Board Meeting  

b. Resolution No. 31-18: Resolution to Grant a Zoning Change & to Amend Zoning 
District Map for Town of Luck 

9. Public Comments –3 minutes per person –not to exceed 30 minutes total 
10. County Board Chair Report 
11. Clerk’s Report 
12. Administrator’s Report and Update, Jeff Fuge – Interim County Administrator 

a. Receipt of Reports from County Board Standing Committees 
b. Confirmation of Appointment of Sabrina Meddaugh as Registered Nurse 

Citizen Member to Health and Human Services Board 
c. Confirmation of Appointment of Tonya Eichelt as Interim Community 

Services Division Director 
d. Confirmation of Appointment of Greg Braun to the Local Emergency Planning 

Committee 
13. Organizational Matters for the Board Term 2018-2020: 

a. Election of County Board Officers: 
i. County Board Chairperson 

ii. 1st Vice Chairperson 
iii. 2nd Vice Chairperson 

        
 
 

1

http://www.co.polk.wi.us/


Polk County Board of Supervisors       

  2 
 

 
  **Following the Election of County Board Officers, the County Board will convene as the 
Committee of the Whole on matters noticed herein.  The Committee of the Whole may receive 
information, deliberate and provide the County Board with recommendation concerning such 
noticed Subject matters.  The Committee of the Whole may not take final action on such 
matter.  Once the Committee of the Whole adjourns and the County Board reconvenes to 
conduct legislative activity, the County Board may take action on such matters noticed herein 
and consider recommendations of the Committee of the Whole. 
 

14. Committee of the Whole:   
a. Status Report and Discussion of Highway Facility Project 
b. Discussion of Revisions to Polk County Board of Supervisors Rules of Order 

Ordinance (No. 17-16) 
c. Organizational Matters: Recommendations Concerning Committee Duties, 

Responsibilities and Assigned Functions 
d. Discussion of Resolutions and Ordinances Noticed on the Agenda 
e. Adjournment of Committee of the Whole 

Following adjournment of the Committee of the Whole, the County Board will reconvene as 
a legislative body to take up, consider and act upon the subject matters identified herein, as 
follows: 

15. Reconvene as County Board 
16. Continue Organizational Matters for the Board Term 2018-2020   

a. Develop and Adopt Revisions to Polk County Board of Supervisors Rules of Order 
Ordinance No. 17-16),  

b. Establishing Duties, Responsibilities and Assigned Functions of County Board 
Standing Committees   

c. Nomination, Appointment and Confirmation of Supervisors to County Board 
Standing Committees 

d. Confirmation of Administrator’s Appointments of Citizen Members to 
Standing Committees, Other County Committees, Boards and Commissions 

17. Proposed Resolution and Ordinances Offered for Adoption or Enactment at April 17, 
2018, meeting: 

   On Recommendation by Environmental Services Committee: 
       Zoning Ordinances:  

a. Ordinance No. 15-18: Amended Polk County Shoreland Protection Zoning 
Ordinance 

b. Ordinance No. 16-18: Amended Polk County Private Onsite Wastewater Treatment 
System (POWTS) Ordinance 

c. Ordinance No. 17-18: Amended Polk County Comprehensive Land Use Ordinance 
d. Ordinance No. 18-18: Amended Polk County Small Wind Energy System Ordinance 
e. Ordinance No. 19-18: Amended Polk County Lower St. Croix Riverway Ordinance 
f. Ordinance No. 20-18: Amended Polk County Board of Adjustment Procedures 

Ordinance 

2



Polk County Board of Supervisors       

  3 
 

g. Ordinance No. 21-18: Amended Telecommunication Towers, Antennas, and 
Related Facilities Ordinance 

Trail Planning 
h. Resolution No. 34-18:  Resolution Concerning Compensation for Environmental 

Services Subcommittee on Trail Planning 
           On Recommendation by Executive Committee: 

i. Resolution No. 35-18: Resolution to Authorize Professional Services Agreement 
with Executive Search Firm – County Administrator and Community Services 
Division Director 

j. Resolution No. 33-18:  Resolution Concerning the Construction of a New Polk 
County Grandstand 

On Recommendation by Public Safety and Highway Committee: 
k. Ordinance No. 32-18: Amendment to the Polk County ATV and UTV Route 

Ordinance 
18. Supervisors Announcements  
19. Adjourn 

This meeting is open to the public according to Wisconsin State Statute 19.83. Persons with disabilities 
wishing to attend and/or participate are asked to notify the County Clerk’s office (715-485-9226) at least 24 
hours in advance of the scheduled meeting time so all reasonable accommodations can be made. Requests 
are confidential. 

 

3



1 
 

          Polk County Board of Supervisors 
Polk County Government Center - County Board Room 

100 Polk County Plaza, Balsam Lake, Wisconsin 
 

Minutes of the Regular Meeting 
Tuesday, March 20, 2018  

 
Chairman Dean Johansen called the regular March 20, 2018 meeting of the Polk County Board 
of Supervisors to order at 6:02 p.m. 
 
Chairman Johansen recognized the County Clerk for purposes of receiving evidence of proper 
notice. The County Clerk stated that the notice of meeting was properly posted in the 
Government Center Building, posted on the County website, and published in a legal 
newspaper in accordance with Wisconsin Statute Section 985.02 the week of March 12, 2018. 
In addition, the Office of the County Clerk distributed on March 9, 2018 copies of such notice of 
meeting and proposed resolutions to supervisors via e-mail and mail in accordance with Article 
3, Section 2 of the County Board Rules of Order. The County Clerk stated that the Amended 
Agenda was published electronically on the County website, posted in the Government Center 
Building in two places and distributed to the supervisors and media contacts via email or mail 
on March 16, 2018.  
 
The County Board received verbal opinion of Assistant Corporation Counsel Malone that the 
initial advance written notice, posted and published as described by the Clerk satisfied the 
applicable provision of Wisconsin Open Meetings Law and the applicable procedural provisions 
of the Polk County Board Rules of Order. Corporation Counsel advised that the amended 
agenda satisfied the applicable provision of the Wisconsin Open Meetings Law but a motion to 
suspend Rules of Order would be necessary to adopt an agenda conforming to the amended 
notice of meeting. 
 
Chairman Johansen recognized the County Clerk for purposes of taking roll call. Fourteen 
County Board Supervisors were present with Supervisor Masters absent and excused. 
  
Chairman Johansen led the County Board in the Pledge of Allegiance.  
 
Chairman Johansen called for a Time of Reflection.   
 
Chairman Johansen called to the floor for a motion to suspend the Rules of Order for the 
purpose of adopting an agenda that conforms to the amended notice of meeting issued on 
March 16, 2018. Motion (Jepsen/Demulling) to suspend the Rules of Order for said purposes. 

4



2 
 

Chairman Johansen called for a voice vote on the motion to suspend the Rules of Order in 
regard to the Amended Agenda. Motion to suspend Rules of Order carried by unanimous voice 
vote. 
                                                         
Chairman Johansen called to the floor consideration and approval of the Amended Agenda. 
Motion (Bonneprise/Luke) to adopt the Amended Agenda as noticed. Chairman Johansen called 
for a voice vote on said motion. Motion carried by unanimous voice vote.  
 
Chairman Johansen called to the floor for approval of the Consent Agenda. Motion 
(Jepsen/LaBlanc) to adopt the Consent Agenda as noticed. Chairman Johansen called for a voice 
vote on the motion to adopt Consent Agenda. Motion carried by unanimous voice vote.  
Matters adopted under the Consent Agenda: Minutes from February 19, 2018 adopted as 
published. 
 
Time was given for public comment. Board received public comment. 
 
Recognition of the 41 years of public service (1977 to 2018) of Gretchen Sampson was 
presented by William F. Johnson IV with gratitude for her faithful service. 
 
Chairman Johansen called to the floor, Resolution No. 30-18: Resolution Concerning the 
Gretchen Sampson Friend of Public Health Award. Chairman Johansen called for a motion to 
adopt Resolution No. 30-18. Motion (Bonneprise/Demulling) to adopt Resolution No. 30-18. 
Chairman Johansen called for a voice vote on said motion. Motion to adopt Resolution No. 30-
18 carried by unanimous voice vote.  Resolution No. 30-18: Resolution Concerning the Gretchen 
Sampson Friend of Public Health Award adopted.  
 
County Board received Chairman’s report.  WITC District Board Committee has two vacancies. 
Josh Robinson will be the new local School District Administrator representative from Polk 
County on WITC Board. County Board received two local news articles regarding the retirement 
of Administrator Frey. Chairman Johansen recognized the legacy of Administrator Frey. 
Chairman Johansen declared that it is truly remarkable what Administrator Frey did for the 
fiscal position and budgeting for Polk County, recognizing that the accomplishments were a 
collective effort with Polk County employees.  
 
Chairman Johansen called for a motion to go into closed session (6:35 p.m.). Motion 
(Jepsen/Route) to go into closed session for the purpose of deliberating on the compensation 
to be set for Interim County Administrator and on matters related to the retirement and 
employment contract of Dana Frey pursuant to Wisconsin Statute Section 19.85(1) (c) further 
identified in the agenda. Chairman Johansen called for a voice vote on the motion to go into 
closed session. Motion to go into closed session carried by unanimous voice vote.  
 
Chairman Johansen announced before convening in closed session that the record reflect that 
staff members Assistant Corporation Counsel Malia Malone, Deputy County Administrator 
Andrea Jerrick, and County Clerk Sharon Jorgenson will be present during the closed session. 

5



3 
 

Interim Administrator Jeff Fuge was not present in closed session. 
 

**Closed Session** (6:35 p.m.) 
*Open Session* (7:19 p.m.) 

Board reconvened in open session at 7:19 p.m. 
 

Chairman Johansen called for a recess at 7:20 p.m. Chairman Johansen called Board back into 
open session at 7:30 p.m. 
 
Chairman Johansen called for a motion regarding the retirement of Dana Frey. Motion 
(Luke/Demulling) to approve and accept immediate resignation and retirement of 
Administrator Frey effective March 1, 2018 and waive the thirty day notice of resignation 
requirement of Frey’s employment contract (per verbiage received from outside counsel). 
Chairman Johansen called for a voice vote on said motion. Motion carried by unanimous voice 
vote.  
 
Chairman Johansen called for a motion to confirm appointment of Jeff Fuge as Interim County 
Administrator effective March 2, 2018. Motion (Arcand/Olson) to confirm appointment of Jeff 
Fuge as Interim County Administrator effective March 2, 2018 and to set compensation at the 
most recent salary of previous administrator. Chairman Johansen called for a voice vote on said 
motion. Motion carried by unanimous voice vote.  
 
Chairman Johansen called attention to folders received by Supervisors and asked Supervisors to 
review materials in the folders (Policy 10, Rules of Order, etc.) in preparation for April 17, 2018 
organizational meeting.  
 
County Board received written Report of Standing Committees from Interim Administrator 
Fuge. County Board received Administrator’s report from Interim Administrator Fuge regarding 
update on the office of the County Administrator and the Office of Corporation Counsel. Malia 
Malone will perform duties of Corporation Counsel.  County moving forward on succession 
process for several positions, Administrator, Community Services Director, Chief Deputy, and 
County Forest Administrator. WITC lease has been finalized. National Public Health Week is 
slated for April 2 through 8, 2018 with public health topics/themes each day. National Work 
Zone Awareness week is scheduled for April 9 through 13, 2018 with the theme Work Zone 
Safety: Everybody’s Responsibility to emphasize the importance of safety in work zone areas. 
 
County Board received update regarding the status of Resolution No. 04-18: Resolution to 
Authorize Sale of County Lands Formerly Known as the Old Country Dam. Environmental 
Services Committee postponed recommendation until May committee meeting. Property has 
IRS liens, DWD liens, and other potential liens. 
 
Chairman Johansen called upon Interim Administrator Fuge for announcement of appointment 
of Peter Raye as Citizen Member to the Health and Human Services Board and Debra Peters and 
Wayne Tomfohrde as Citizen Representatives to the Polk County Housing Authority Committee. 

6



4 
 

Chairman Johansen called for a motion to confirm said appointments. Motion 
(O’Connell/Bonneprise) to confirm appointments of Peter Raye as Citizen Member to the 
Health and Human Services Board, and Debra Peters and Wayne Tomfohrde as Citizen 
Representatives to the Polk County Housing Authority Committee. Chairman Johansen called 
for a voice vote on the motion to confirm said appointment. Motion to confirm appointment 
carried by unanimous voice vote.  
 
Chairman Johansen called for a motion to convene as Committee of the Whole at 7:50 p.m.  
Motion (Jepsen/Prichard) to convene as Committee of the Whole. Chairman Johansen called 
for a voice vote on said motion. Motion to convene as Committee of the Whole carried by 
unanimous voice vote. 
 
Chairman Johansen called upon Deputy Administrator Jerrick for status report on Highway 
Facility project. Committee received photo update of building progress from Randy LaFaive, 
Construction Manager Representative. Board received budget status of highway facility from 
Deputy Administrator Jerrick. Seated as Committee of the Whole, the Board received 
presentation of bid tabulation results and contract awarded for Bid Package #3 of the Highway 
Garage Improvement Project from Randy LaFaive. Board received updated information on 
change orders  
 
Committee of the Whole engaged in discussion of resolutions/ordinances noticed on the 
agenda. 
 
Committee of the Whole received a current list of committees and appointees and a copy of a 
questionnaire from 2015 regarding various committees. 
 
Committee of the Whole engaged in discussion of recommendations concerning the 
organizational meeting of the County Board, Term 2018 -2020. Chairman Johansen called upon 
Interim Administrator Jeff Fuge who provided information regarding organizational meeting of 
board to be held Tuesday, April 17, 2018 beginning at 9:00 a.m.  
 
Chairman Johansen called for a motion to adjourn Committee of the Whole session and 
reconvene in legislative session of the Board.  Motion (Demulling/Prichard) to adjourn 
Committee of the Whole session. Chairman Johansen called for a voice vote on the motion. 
Motion carried by unanimous voice vote. Committee of the Whole adjourned 8:45 p.m. 
 
Chairman Johansen declared a recess at 8:45 p.m. Chairman Johansen called the Board back in 
legislative session at 8:53 p.m.  
 
Chairman Johansen called to the floor, Resolution No. 22-18: Resolution to Authorize Polk 
County Highway Garage Public Improvement Project and Award Construction Contracts for 
Highway Garage – Bid Package #3. Motion (Jepsen/Isakson) to adopt Resolution No. 22-18.  
Chairman Johansen called for a voice vote to approve the motion to adopt Resolution No. 22-18 
as amended. Motion to adopt Resolution No. 22-18 carried by majority voice vote with one 

7



5 
 

voting no (Supervisor Olson voting no). Resolution No. 22-18: Resolution to Authorize Polk 
County Highway Garage Public Improvement Project and Award Construction Contracts for 
Highway Garage – Bid Package #3 adopted.  
 
Motion (O’Connell/Bonneprise) to amend previously adopted Resolution No. 22-18 to 
insert/include table showing contract awarded to bidder and contract amount. Chairman 
Johansen called for a voice vote to approve the motion to amend previously adopted 
Resolution No. 22-18.  Motion to amend previously adopted Resolution No. 22-18 to add Bid 
award information to contractors as per Bid Tabulation sheet carried by unanimous voice vote. 
Resolution No. 22-18 Resolution to Authorize Polk County Highway Garage Public Improvement 
Project and Award Construction Contracts for Highway Garage – Bid Package #3 amended.  
 
Chairman Johansen called to the floor, Resolution No. 29-18: Resolution to Amend 2018 Budget 
for Rental of Bleachers for Fairgrounds. Note correction of typo of Resolution title on agenda – 
should be “rental”, not “purchase”. Chairman Johansen called for a motion to adopt Resolution 
No. 29-18. Motion (Jepsen/Demulling) to adopt Resolution No. 29-18. Chairman Johansen 
called for a roll call vote on said motion. Motion to adopt Resolution No. 29-18 carried by roll 
call vote with 13 voting yes and 1 no and 1 absent (voting no: Supervisor Nelson, absent 
Supervisor Masters).  Resolution No. 29-18: Resolution to Amend 2018 Budget for Rental of 
Bleachers for Fairgrounds adopted.  
 
Chairman Johansen called to the floor, Resolution No. 27-18: Resolution In Opposition to 
Proposed Legislation that Transfers County Board Powers to County Executive and County 
Administrator. Chairman Johansen called for a motion to adopt Resolution No. 27-18. Motion 
(Jepsen/Olson) to adopt Resolution No. 27-18. Chairman Johansen called for a voice vote to 
adopt Resolution No. 27-18. Motion to adopt Resolution No. 27-18 carried by unanimous voice 
vote. Resolution No. 27-18 adopted.  
 
Chairman Johansen called to the floor, Ordinance No. 10-18:  Ordinance Establishing Cut-Off 
Times for Filing and Recording Documents in the Register of Deeds Office.  Chairman Johansen 
called for a motion to adopt Ordinance No. 10-18. Motion (Prichard/Route) to adopt Ordinance 
No. 10-18. Chairman Johansen called for a voice vote to approve the motion to adopt 
Ordinance No. 10-18.  Motion to adopt Ordinance No. 10-18 carried by unanimous voice vote. 
Ordinance No. 10-18 adopted.  
 
Chairman Johansen called to the floor, Ordinance No. 11-18: Amending Self-Organized 
Ordinance to Repeal Meeting Limitation on Per Diem Compensation.  Motion 
(Jepsen/Demulling) to delay decision on Ordinance until May 2018 County Board Meeting. 
Chairman Johansen called for a voice vote to approve the motion to delay Ordinance No. 11-18.  
Motion to delay decision on Ordinance No. 11-18 until May 2018 meeting carried by 
unanimous voice vote. Ordinance No. 11-18: Amending Self-Organized Ordinance to Repeal 
Meeting Limitation on Per Diem Compensation delayed until May 2018 County Board meeting.  
 

8



6 
 

Chairman Johansen called to the floor, Resolution No. 23-18: Resolution to Set Compensation 
for Elected Officials for Term 2019-2022 (Sheriff and Clerk of Circuit Court). Chairman Johansen 
called for a motion to adopt Resolution No. 23-18. Motion (Arcand/Bonneprise) to adopt 
Resolution No. 23-18 with the compensation amounts added for Sheriff: $92,084.00 in 2019, 
$94,386.00 in 2020, $96,746.00 in 2021, and $99,165.00 in 2022 and compensation amounts 
for Clerk of Circuit Court: $65,555.00 in 2019, $67,194.00 in 2020, $68,874.00 in 2021, and 
$70,596.00 in 2022. Chairman Johansen called for a voice vote to adopt Resolution No. 23-18. 
Motion to adopt Resolution No. 23-18 carried by unanimous voice vote. Resolution No. 23-18: 
Resolution to Set Compensation for Elected Officials for Term 2019-2022 (Sheriff and Clerk of 
Circuit Court) adopted.  
 
Chairman Johansen called to the floor, Resolution No. 24-18: Resolution to Authorize the 
Staffing of the UW-Extension Family Educator. Chairman Johansen called for a motion to adopt 
Resolution No. 24-18. Motion (Route/Isakson) to adopt Resolution No. 24-18.  
Chairman Johansen called for a voice vote to adopt Resolution No. 24-18. Motion to adopt 
Resolution No. 24-18 carried by unanimous voice vote. Resolution No. 24-18: Resolution to 
Authorize the Staffing of the UW-Extension Family Educator adopted.  
 
Chairman Johansen called to the floor, Resolution No. 25-18: Resolution to Authorize the 
Staffing of the Community Development Educator. Chairman Johansen called for a motion to 
adopt Resolution No. 25-18. Motion (Jepsen/Demulling) to adopt Resolution No. 25-18.  
Chairman Johansen called for a roll call vote to adopt Resolution No. 25-18. Motion to adopt 
Resolution No. 25-18 carried by roll call vote with 8 voting yes and 6 voting no (voting no: 
Supervisors Olson, Route, Nelson, LaBlanc, Prichard, and Arcand. Absent –Supervisor Masters). 
Resolution No. 25-18: Resolution to Authorize the Staffing of the UW-Extension Community 
Development Educator adopted.  
 
Chairman Johansen called to the floor, Resolution No. 26-18: Resolution to Authorize UW-
Extension Agriculture and Natural Resources Educator Services. Chairman Johansen called for a 
motion to adopt Resolution No. 26-18. Motion (O’Connell/Isakson) to adopt Resolution No. 26-
18. Chairman Johansen called for a roll call vote to adopt Resolution No. 26-18. Motion to 
adopt Resolution No. 26-18 carried by roll call vote with 9 voting yes and 5 voting no (voting no: 
Supervisors Olson, Route, Nelson, LaBlanc, and Arcand. Absent-Supervisor Masters). Resolution 
No. 26-18: Resolution to Authorize UW-Extension Agriculture and Natural Resources Educator 
Services adopted.  
 
Chairman Johansen called for a motion to go into closed session (9:37 p.m.). Motion 
(Jepsen/LaBlanc) to go into closed session for the purpose of receiving legal opinion from 
Corporation Counsel concerning litigation strategy that the Board may adopt concerning the 
noticed pending litigation pursuant to Wisconsin Statute Sections 19.85(1)(g) and further 
identified in the agenda. Chairman Johansen called for a voice vote on the motion to go into 
closed session. Motion to go into closed session carried by unanimous voice vote.  
 

9



7 
 

Chairman Johansen announced before convening in closed session that the record reflect that 
staff members Interim Administrator Jeff Fuge, Assistant Corporation Counsel Malia Malone 
and County Clerk Sharon Jorgenson will be present during the closed session. 
 

**Closed Session** (9:37 p.m.) 
*Open Session* (10:06 p.m.) 

 
 Board reconvened in open session at 10:06 p.m.  

 
Interim Administrator Fuge announced to the press that the County Board received an opinion 
from Corporation Counsel regarding pending litigation and the County Board adopted a 
litigation strategy. 
 
Chairman Johansen called to the floor, Resolution No. 28-18: Resolution Providing for 
Comprehensive Planning Process for Stower Seven Lakes State Trail Plan and Cattail State Trail 
(Polk County Segment) Plan. Chairman Johansen called for a motion to adopt Resolution No. 
28-18. Motion (O’Connell/Olson) to adopt Resolution No. 28-18. Motion (Arcand/Nelson) to 
amend Resolution No. 28-18 removing “state” wherever Cattail Trail is referenced as a state 
trail in Resolution 28-18. Chairman Johansen called for a roll call vote on the amendment. 
Resolution No. 28-18 carried by roll call vote with 8 voting yes and 6 voting no (voting no: 
Supervisors Olson, Prichard, Edgell, O’Connell, Isakson, and Johansen. Absent – Supervisor 
Masters). 
Chairman Johansen called for a voice vote to adopt Resolution No. 28-18 as amended. Motion 
to adopt Resolution No. 28-18 as amended carried by majority voice vote with one voting no 
(Voting no: Supervisor Prichard). Resolution No. 28-18: Resolution Providing for Comprehensive 
Planning Process for Stower Seven Lakes State Trail Plan and Cattail Trail (Polk County Segment) 
Plan adopted as amended.  
 
Time was given for Supervisors Reports/Announcements. Board received reports from 
Supervisors. 
 
Chairman Johansen called for a motion to adjourn. Motion (Bonneprise/Luke) to adjourn. 
Chairman Johansen called for a voice vote on the motion to adjourn. Motion to adjourn carried 
by unanimous voice vote.  Chairman Johansen declared meeting adjourned 10:14 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted,  
 
 
Sharon E. Jorgenson, Polk County Clerk 
 
 
 

10



1 

 

     Jeffrey B. Fuge 
   Interim County Administrator/ Corporation Counsel 

100 Polk County Plaza, Suite 220 
Balsam Lake, WI 54810 

715-485-9282 
jefff@co.polk.wi.us 

       
 
TO:     Polk County 2018-2020 Board of Supervisors 
Cc:  Department Heads and Elected Officials 
 
FROM: Jeffrey B. Fuge, Interim County Administrator/Corporation Counsel 
DATE: April 5, 2018 
 
RE:  County Administrator’s Report and Update 
 
 Polk County is the recipient of the Public Partnership Award of the Polk County Economic 

Development Corporation (EDC).   The Public Partnership Award is given to a public entity that 
partners with private enterprise and generates significant benefits to the County.   The Polk 
County EDC recognized Polk County for its initiative to expand Broadband communications 
throughout Polk County; the successful partnership with WITC to establish the WITC – Polk 
County Outreach Center; and supporting skill development and the recruitment of workers 
through partnerships with WITC, Workforce Resources and private companies for the Polk 
Construction Academy at the Polk County Library/ School Building and the high school All 
Skills Career Day at the Polk County Fairgrounds in coordination with Workforce Resources, the 
Polk County Fair Society and private companies.  The Public Partnership Award will be 
presented at the Polk County Economic Development Corporation Awards Banquet set for May 
15, 2018 at Paradise Landing.   
 

 The Polk Construction Academy started April 3, 2018 and will run for four weeks.  A copy of the 
flyer is attached.  
 

 The All Skills Career Day is set for May 23, 2018.  A copy of the flyer is attached.  
 

 A retirement celebration for Gretchen Sampson was held at the Government Center on April 5, 
2018.  
 

 Polk County has issued a request for proposals seeking an executive search firm to provide 
recruitment and selection consulting services for the county offices of County Administrator and 
Community Services Division Director. The submission due date for proposals is April 16, 2018.  
 

 

 

           JeffreyB. Fuge

11



2 

 

 Polk County released the 2018 Operating and Capital Budget Book.   A copy of the 
Citizen’s Guide to the Polk County Budget is attached.  The Budget Book is accessible 
on the County website at  2018 Polk County Annual Operating and Capital Budget Book.  
The Clerk will distribute the paper copy of the Budget Book.   
 

 The County financial Quarterly Report is attached.  
 

 The 2019 Budget Calendar is attached.  
 

 The public awareness initiatives for April are:  Public Health Awareness – April 2-6; National 
Work Zone Awareness – April 9-13; Tornado and Severe Weather Awareness – April 9-13; and 
Crime Victim Right’s Week – April 8 -14.   
 

 A tornado drill is scheduled for April 12, 2018.  A copy of Tornado Safety article from 
Emergency Management is attached.  

 

JBF/jbf 

 

 

12



Learn: 
Hand and power tool use

Framing

Scaffolding

Blueprint reading

Construction math

Receive upon completion:
OSHA 10 Construction Card 

Workforce Resource Work Readiness Certificate

Polk County Construction Academy
free five week training

WITC is an equal opportunity/access/affirmative 
action/veterans/disability employer and educator. 

witc.edu   •   800.243.9482

> Hands-on learning!

Offered as part of a Workforce Resource 
Fast Forward Grant

QUESTIONS? CONTACT: Workforce Resource 
Coordinator for Polk and Barron County, Bonnie Fredrickson 
404 Main Street    P: (715)485-9512, ext. 1812
P. O Box 278    C: 715-505-7225
Balsam Lake, WI 54810  F: (715) 203-0936  (new fax number)

E: fredricksonb@workforceresource.org

A proud partner of the American Job Center network

Details: 
Begins April 3, 2018
12:00 p.m. - 3: 30 p.m. 
Tuesday - Friday with some Saturdays

Polk County Outreach Center
400 County Rd I, Balsam Lake, WI 54810

Interviews offered by the following employers:

13



14



15



16



Quick facts: 
 

Land area:  956 square miles 

Number of lakes: 437 

Population (2017 estimate): 44,450 

Real GDP 2015 (‘09 dollars: $1.5 billion 

Per capita personal income: (2017) $33,104 

Unemployment rate (Feb, 2018): 4.0% 

Located in  northwestern Wisconsin, Polk County contains an incredible variety of natural 
beauty in its lakes and rivers, small towns, rolling hills, farms and forests. The county is 
bordered on the west by the St. Croix River, a federally designated wild and scenic river, 
with the magnificent St. Croix dalles forming the heart of Interstate State Park. Peacefully 
rural in nature, the county has no city with a population over 3,000. 

Polk County was organized in 1853, and over the past decade has been one of the fastest-
growing counties in Wisconsin. It has a diverse economy with a mix of agriculture, tour-
ism, manufacturing, and services.  Its proximity to a large metropolitan area has served to 
provide a ready market for goods produced here as well as a demand for recreational ac-
tivities including boating, fishing, hunting, snowmobiling, hiking, biking and skiing.   

About Polk County 

Polk County provides services to its citizens in law enforcement, child support collec-
tion and child protection, transportation and nutrition for older citizens, maintains a 515 
mile highway system, provides public health services including immunization and restau-
rant inspections, works to protect our natural resources including our groundwater and 
lakes, ensures orderly development through planning and zoning, operates the county 
detention center and court system, provides assistance to veterans, the elderly and disa-
bled, operates a long-term care and rehabilitation facility, 6 county parks, a recycling 
center, and manages 17,144 acres of county forest.  The county does so through the 
efforts of  424 full time employees organized into 23 departments and funded by a $53 
million annual budget. 

County Organization and Services 

 

A report on county 
performance 

2 

The 2018 budget 2-3 

Challenges and op-
portunities 

4 

Contact us 4 

Contents: 

Calendar Year 2018 

Mission: 
To serve and represent the 
public with integrity 

Vision: 
Improved quality of life for 
all who live, work, and play 
in Polk County 

Strategic Priorities: 
Foster a diverse economic 
base 

Promote quality education 
for all 

Design good land use prac-
tices that recognize distinc-
tions 

Preserve and enhance the 
environment 

Maintain a responsive 
transportation system 

A Citizen’s Guide to the 
Polk County Budget 

Polk County D.D. Kennedy Park 

33

17



Selected Key Performance Indicators: 
Area Goal Indicator 2017 plan 2018 plan 2016 

Economic 
development  

Promote the agricultural 
industry 

Demand for agricultur-
al lime products, dollar 

685,000 664,000 654,000 

Encourage and develop 
tourism and local business 

Sales tax collections in 
Polk County 

$2.97m $3.15m $2.90m 

Quality edu-
cation 

Provide educational op-
portunities to preserve 
links to the past 

Schools participating in 
the Polk County Muse-
um program 

5 of 8 5 of 8 5 of 8 

Land use 
practices 

Support land uses that 
grow a strong economy 

Percentage of parcel 
map completed 

98% 99% 97% 

Environmen-
tal protection 

Safeguard public and en-
vironmental health 

Number of public 
beaches monitored 
weekly for safety  

5 5 5 

Transporta-
tion  

Recreational trail develop-
ment and maintenance 

Miles of recreational 
trails 

488 488 488 

Maintain and improve the 
road system 

Pavement quality index  
(7 = isolated cracks) 

7.0 7.0 7.0 

Safeguard public and en-
vironmental health 

High school students 
who smoke 

15.5% 15% Quality of 
life  

20.7% 

Quality long-term care at 
Golden Age Manor 

Occupancy rate 87% 90% 91% 

The 2018Budget: Where Your Tax Dollar Goes 

How Have We Progressed? 

Did you know?  
Polk County maintains 
343 miles of snowmobile 
trails, 32 miles of ATV 
trails, and 41 miles of bi-
cycle trails?  

Page 2  Polk  County  Ci t izen’s  Guide  to  the  Budget  

The measures reported on this page are based on input from the citizens of the county.  What measures would you 
like to see reported?  Let us know by contacting us at the address on the last page. 

44

18



An independent audit is conducted every year, resulting in a clean audit opinion.  These results, and additional financial information, may be found 
on our website: http://www.co.polk.wi.us/Admin/budget-reports.asp 

Revenues 2017 2018 Budget 

General Property Tax 21,611,424 21,854,342 
Other Taxes 3,511,145 3,736,145 
State Aids 11,054,703 10,961,051 
Public Charge for Services 12,092,008 12,053,445 
Intergovernmental Revenue 2,973,805 3,080,715 
Other Revenue 1,066,526 1,331,434 
Other Financing Sources 1,357,111 359,340 
Total Resources 53,666,722 53,376,472 

Expenditures 2017 2018 Budget 
Personnel  30,268,488 30,705,150 
Professional Services 9,302,283 8,506,215 
Supplies & Expenses 6,200,713 6,563,963 
Fixed Charges 1,595,840 1,577,743 
Debt Service 2,258,255 2,823,126 
Capital Outlay 879,229 2,449,631 
Other 2,550,658 1,690,222 
Total Expenditures 53,055,466 54,316,050 

Budget in Brief: Revenues and Expenditures 

Page 3  Polk  County Cit izens ’  Guide to  the Budget  

Did you know?  
In 2017-18 winter, the Polk County Highway Depart-
ment logged 5,640 hours on snow and ice control.– 
that’s almost three person/years!   

Examples of Resources: 
Other Taxes: Sales tax 

State Aids: State general revenue sharing funds and grants 
Public Charge for Services: Permit fees 

Other Revenue:  Interest income 
Other Financing Sources:  Internal fund transfers 

Examples of Expenditures: 

Professional Services:  Medical services for clients 

Supplies & Expenses:  Road salt, gasoline for patrol cars 

Fixed Charges: Insurance premiums 

Debt Service:  Bond repayments 

Capital Outlay: Road grader for Highway Department 

Other:  Grants, cost reallocations 

Note: 2018 expenditures were artificially lower due to an refinanc-
ing which lowers our debt payment; revenues and expenditures 
also adjusted to avoid double-counting health insurance costs. 

General 
Property 

Taxes
41%

Other 
Taxes

7%

State 
Aids
20%

Public 
Charge 

for 
Services

23%

Intergov 
Revenue

6%

Other 
Revenue

2%

Other 
Financing 
Sources

1%

2018 Revenue

Personnel
57%Profession

al Services
16%

Supplies & 
Expense

12%

Fixed 
Charges

3%

Debt 
Service

5%

Capital 
Outlay

4%

Other
3%

2018 Expenses

55

19



Questions? Comments?  See: www.co.polk.wi.us or email deptadmin@co.polk.wi.us 
 Mail:   Administration, 100 Polk Plaza Suite 220, Balsam Lake WI 54810  
Call:   Maggie Wickre 715-485-9122 

Page 4  

Polk County enjoys a strong competitive advantage due to its location adjacent to a major metropolitan area, skilled 
workforce, and natural resources.  The local economy continues to show substantial improvement: in housing values, 
retail sales and employment.  Health care has become a major and growing industry in Polk County, now accounting for 
over one-fourth of the total payroll  and one-fifth of total employment, up from one-sixth just a few years ago. Howev-
er, manufacturing continues to dominate the County’s economy, accounting for 33 percent of total payroll. 

Like much of rural America, the greatest demographic challenge the county faces is 
the rapid aging of its population and the need to assure adequate services are avail-
able to them. Our rural character makes this a more difficult as most of our resi-
dents live outside of our cities and villages, many around one of our 400 lakes.  
Our lakes themselves, a key to our tourist industry and quality of life, are also an 
increasing priority due to invasive species and protection of water quality.  Limited 
revenues will force reprioritization of county services to meet these challenges.  

Despite these issues, Polk County has and will continue to be financially responsi-
ble, with balanced budgets and realistic reserves.  We are in the midst of a conscious transition to a smaller, more flexi-
ble and efficient government, one planning its own future.  Citizen participation in helping our government determine 
priorities is essential; this document is intended to be both a source of information and a request for input.  Let us 
know what you think! 

Looking To The Future 

Polk County Cit izens’  Guide To The Budget  

Did you know?  
According to the US Census Bu-

reau, Polk County ranked thirty first 
highest among Wisconsin counties 

in in per capita personal income.  

 
Polk County is proud to 
have received a Certificate 
of Excellence in Citizen-
centric Reporting from the 
Association of Govern-
ment Accountants. 

Polk County Board of Supervisors 
Dis-
trict 

Supervisor   District Supervisor 

1. Brad Olson   9. Kim A. O'Connell 
2. Doug Route   10. Larry Jepsen 
3. Dean Johansen   11. Jay Luke 
4. Chris Nelson   12. Kate Isakson 
5. Tracy LaBlanc   13. Russell Arcand 
6. Brian Masters   14. John Bonneprise 
7. Michael Prichard   15. Joseph Demulling 
8. James Edgell     
      Jeff Fuge 

Interim County Administrator 

Polk County Age-Sex Pyramid 2010 and 2040 

66

20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69


	County Board Agenda 4-17-2018
	Minutes 3-20-2018
	AdminReportUpdate04172018F
	AdminReport&Update04052018Combined
	04052018_AdminReport & Update-signed
	2018_04_PCConstrcutionAcademy_FINAL_001 (003)
	Career Day flyer
	2018BudgetBook- Citizens Guide
	2018FQStmt
	2019 Budget Calendar

	Tornado Safety_2018

	Res 31-18 Zoning Change Town of Luck
	Ord 15-18 Shoreland Protection Ord
	Ord 16-18 POWTS Ordinance
	Ord 17-18 Comp Land Use Ord (2)
	Ord 18-18 Small Wind Energy Ord
	Ord 19-18 St Croix River Ord
	Ord 20-18 BOA Ordinance
	Ord 21-18 Towers, Antennas, Related Facilities
	Res 34-18 Compensation for ES Subcommittee
	Res 35-18 Authorize Search Firm
	Res 33-18 Construction of New Grandstand
	Ord 32-18 Amend ATV UTV Ord



